Dykema Gossett PLLC

4000 Wells Fargo Center
y EMA 90 South Seventh Street

Minneapolis, MN 55402

WIAW. DYKEMA. COM

Tel: (612) 486-1900

Shannon M. Heim

Direct Dial: (612) 486-1586

Direct Fax: (855) 223-7059
Email: SHeim@dykema.com

July 1, 2014 Via Hand Delivery

Ms. Marlene Dortch

Federal Communications Commission
445 12th Street SW

Washington, D.C. 20554

Re:  FCC Form 481 - High-Cost Support Information and Low-Income Support Information
Pursuant to 47 C.F.R. §§ 54.313(a)-(g) and 54.422(a)

Dear Secretary Dortch:

Pursuant to 47 C.F.R. §§ 54.313(a)-(g) and 54.422(a) of the Federal Communication
Commission’s regulations, please find enclosed the FCC Form 481 for Nushagak Electric and
Telephone Cooperative, Inc. This form was also filed at the Regulatory Commission of Alaska
{RCA) and USAC.

Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. seeks confidential treatment for its financial
information pursuant to the Protective Order, Connect America Fund, et al., WC Docket No. 10-
90 et al., (Nov. 16, 2012). A redacted version is also being filed this date via the FCC’s
Electronic Comment Filing System. In addition, attached is a letter requesting confidential
treatment under 47 C.F.R. §§ 0.457 and 0.459 of the initial § 54.202(a) Five-Year Service
Quality Improvement Plan,

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or I may be of any assistance.
Sincerely,

DYKEMA GOSSETT rLLC

4000 Wells Fargo Center

90 South Seventh Street
Minneapolis, MN 55402
Phone (612) 486-1586

Fax: (855) 223-7059

Email: sheim@dykema.com

Shannon M. Heim

SMHE/ebl

REDACTED — FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



Dykema Gossett PLLC

4000 Wells Fargo Center
y (E MA 90 South Seventh Street

Minneapolis, MN 55402

WWW.DYKEMA.COM

Tel: (612) 486-1900

Shannon M. Heim

Direct Dial: (612) 488-1586

Direct Fax: (855) 223-7059
Email; SHeim@dykema.com

July 1, 2014
Via Hand Delivery

Ms. Marlene Dortch, Secretary
Federal Communications Commission
445 12th Street SW

Washington, D.C. 20554

Re:  FCC Form 481 - High-Cost Support Information and Low-Income Support Information
Pursuant to 47 C.F.R. §§ 54.313(a)-(g) and 54.422(a)

Dear Ms. Dortch:

Pursuant to the Protective Order in Connect America Fund, et al., WC Docket No, 10-90
et al. (Nov, 16, 2012) and 47 C.F.R. §§ 0.457 and 0.459, Nushagak Electric and Telephone
Cooperative, Inc., by its attorneys, hereby requests that certain materials and information be
withheld from public inspection. Specifically, Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative,
Inc. request confidential treatment of the Five-Year Service Quality Improvement Plan (the
“Plan™) attached to its Form 481 filing.

In support of its request for confidential treatment and pursuant to the requirements under
47 C.F.R. § 0.459(b), Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. states the following:

1. Hdentification of the specific information for which confidential treatment is sought.

Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. secks confidential treatment of the
Plan attached to the Form 481 filing accompanying this letter. The Plan contains sensitive
financial information about Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. as well as
information about Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.’s projected network
improvements and upgrades for voice and broadband services during the period from 2015
through 2019,

2. Identification of the Commission proceeding in which the information was submitted or
description of the circumstances giving rise to the submission.

The documents are being submitted as part of the annual Eligible Telecommunications
Carrier (“ETC”) Report (Form 481) mandated by 47 C.F.R. § 54.313.
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3. Explanation of the degree to which the information is commercial or financial, or
contains a trade secret or is privileged.

The data described is highly confidential and sensitive commercial and financial
information which constitutes trade secrets or sensitive coramercial and financial information
that would “customarily be guarded from competitors™ and is therefore exempted from
mandatory disclosure under FOIA Exemption 4 and 47 C.F.R. § 0.457(d).

4. Explanation of the degree to which the information concerns a service that is subject to
competition.

The Plan relates to voice and broadband services provided by Nushagak Electric and
Telephone Cooperative, Inc. that are subject to competition from competitive local exchange
carriers, cable television system operators, electric power utilities, fixed and mobile wireless
service providers, and/or satellite carriers.

Specifically, the Plan sets forth in detail the services provided by Nushagak Electric and
Telephone Cooperative, Inc. over its existing network including location of customers, as well as
planned network improvement and maintenance for 2015 through 2019, including project dates,
populations impacted by the improvements and upgrades, and projected capital costs associated
with maintaining the network. This information is competitively sensitive information related to
the company’s existing network and planned upgrades and maintenance, and would benefit
Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.’s competitors if they were able to have
access to this information.

5. Explanation of how disclosure of the information could resull in substantial competitive
harm.

Disclosure of the Plan is likely to result in substantial competitive harm to Nushagak
Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. because the Plan could provide competitors with
commercially sensitive insights related to Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.’s
operations, service offerings, and costs.

6. Identification of any measures taken by the submitting party to prevent unauthorized
disclosure.

Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. does not make the Plan or any of the
information contained therein publically available in any way. The Plan is only made available to

' 47 C.F.R. § 0.457(d)}2).
25U.8.C. § 522(b)(4).
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key employees with a direct need-to-know basis. This production has been completed by outside
counsel.

7. Identification of whether the information is available to the public and the extent of any
previous disclosure of the information to third parties.

Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. does not make the Plan available to
the public and it has not previously allowed disclosure of the Plan to third parties that are not
otherwise bound by confidentiality obligations.

8. Justification of the period during which the submitting party asserts that the material
should not be available for public disclosure.

The Plan should be treated as confidential for an indefinite period, as Nushagak Electric
and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. will always be subject to competition and the competitive
harms associated with the disclosure of the Plan.

9. Any other information that the party seeking confidential treatment believes may be
useful in assessing whether its request for confidentiality should be granted.

None.,

In order to provide adequate protection from public disclosure, Nushagak Electric and
Telephone Cooperative, Inc. requests that the Commission strictly limit distribution of the Plan
within the Commission on a “need to know™ basis and not allow any distribution outside of the
Commission. In the event that any person or entity outside of the Commission requests
disclosure of the Plan, Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. requests that it be so
notified immediately so that it can oppose such request or take other action to safeguard its
interests as il deems necessary and appropriate.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or I may be of any
assistance.

Sincerely,
DYKEMA GOSSETT rLLC

ﬂfuﬁ@///-/lé;n;

SZ annon M, Heim
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<010> _Study Area Code 613018
=015 Studn‘r Area Name WUSIEAGAIL BLEC & TEN
<020> Program Yeuar 2014

<030> Cantact Mame: Person USAC should contact

with questions aboul this data Hishenl O Hegdt

<35> Contact Telephone Number; 907THAZEAL] axt.
MNumber of the person ldentitied In data line <030>

<039> Contagl Email Address:
Emzil al the person identitied in data line <D30> ™l Lauushagnk.coop

<100> Service Quality Improvement Reperting {compbete aitached warkiheer)
«200=  Outage Reporting {voice) {romplete aitaghed workshecl)
<210 m < chick box if ne outages Lo report

<300>  Unfulfilled Service Requests (voice) 0

<310> Detail on Atterpis {voice)

<320> Unfulfilled Service Requests (broadband) [o ]

<330> Detail onAttempts {broadband)

furiach descriptive document)

<400>  Mumber of Complaints per 1,000 customers (voice)

410> Fixed 0.0
<420> Mobile 0.0
<430> Number of Complaints per 1,000 cust s (broadband)
<44 Fixed L
<450 Mobile 0.0
<5o0s  Service Quality Standards & Consumer Protection Rules Compliance {chiock to knaleate cortificntion) | 7 I v |
€13018ARSI 0 et
<510> Jottached dotecintive documant] | v Il #y ]
600> Functionality In Emergency Situations ; {ehock to dicote vevtification) T |
GL30TAARGLO pdl
fottnched desceiptive dacument)
<610
<700> Company Price OTlerings (voice) [eomplete altached soiksiseen)
<710> Company Price Offerings (broadband) (complete atioched workthect)
<800> Qperating Companies and Affiliates feomplete aiteched worksiiet)
900> Tribal Land Offerings (Y/N]? (i pos, compilate pitechai ok shont)
<1000> Voice Services Rate Comparahility {check 1o tdicate cevlificotion)
<1010 intrach descripitive tfocaront)
<1100> Terrestrial Backhaul (YV/N)? @ o fif riet, eheck to indicate certiftewtion)
<1110 frampleie ntteched morksheel)
<1200> Terms and Condilion for Lifeline Customers feempleie ptisched worksheed)

Price Cap Carriers, Proceed to Price Cap Additional Documentation Worksheet
inciuding Rote-of-Return Corriers affiiated with Price Cop Local Exchange Carrlers

<2000> feheck to indicote covlification)

<2005 feomplote wttvched warksheet)
Rate of Retarn Carriers, Proceed to ROR Additlonal Documen at

<3000 (chreck 4o indente cortificationt

3003> REDACTED . E
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<Gles

Study Aise Code LD

<0152 Study Arep Hene VUNHIUAL ELEC § TEL

=020
<030

Yoar 3Ny
Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Wichan) 0. Beyll

<035

Contact Telephone Number - Number of person idantilled in data line <0305 7041301 o

<038=

Conlact Email Addross - Email Addrass of passon Identifled in data Mlne <0305 sunul Ihwshagnk . reop

<110 Has your company racalved Its ETE cortillcation from the FEE? {yas /o) @ O

111>

1T yout amswer o Line <3105 s yes, do you hove an oxlating §54.202(a) °S
year plan” filod with the FCC? (yes/ na) O @

<112>

113>
<114>
€115
116>
<1175

1 your enswer 10 Line <111> s yos, then you are required 1o hile 2 progress
report, on ling <112> delinsating the status of your company's existing §
54.202{8) "5 yeor plan” on file with the FOC, as it relales 1o your provision of
wolce telephony seivice. FUISARIRD Il
Atlach Five-Yeor Sorvice Quallty bmg Phan or, In tub years,

your annug| progress report filad pursuant to 47 C.AR. § 54.313(){1], i your compony ls &
CETC which only recelvos frozen support, your progress report s ehly

required to address voice telephony service,

Namp of Attachod Document
Flasse chack these bowes below 1w conlirm that 1he attached documanisis), onling
112, coniains & progress report an its Mve-year sarvice qualily improverncit
plan pursuant to § 54.202(z} The Information shell be submitted =t the wire
center leved or consus block az appropriate.

Maps detiiling progress tolrards meating plan lergots

Report how much iniversal sorvice (USF) support wah racelved
How {USF) was usad to imprave service quallly

Haw (USF)was usad to Imprave service coverage

How {USF) was usod ta Imprave service copoclty

Frovida an axplanation of network Improvement targets not met
I tha prlor calendar year.
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035> Comtaal T
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«08%>  Comtac Bl Addeess - Email
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Qs s bl <hi> > <> «l> «b o 282 “4s @ <h>
HORS Diel This Outaze
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tiumbe: - Hombes of per

BETRITII eme.
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Residenttal Logal Seavice Cliarge Liieglive Date
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<0l0s ren Cod i
<01Ss  Sausly Ares Nune JOSHAGAY, ELEC & TEL
50200 Program Yoot 2015
<030 Contark Name - Mevson WSAC should contact regarding this dsta Michaol ei nxall
<0353 Contact Telephorie Humbie: - Mumber of peisan duntifiod in datafine <0300 7 e
<30y Cortans Enall Addee ss - Kl Adddress of persou idontifhud b dats ling 20305 [Cia L) i id
il
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__&010;  Sudy Arca Cado L3010
<015 Sludy Anes Naraa SOUMAERE T A TEL
<020 Program Year 20t
<036>  Contact Nama - Persou USAC should contact 1 this dats o a4
<035>  Contact Ts u #umber  Bumber of person idontitled if dats e <030> 30783235251 mat.
<039 Contact Emall Address - Emadl Addicas of person Wentified in data line <030>  -nepi i mcabiarss, nocp
<Alds Carriar Huskagak Blectoke & Tolsphone Deoparative. Ies.

811> Holding Company

<B12>  Operating Compay

Adhitinves SAC 0alig Businass As Company nr Brand Designatlon
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<010> _ Study Ares Code $13010
€015>  Study Area Name HANAEAR BLEC B TEE
euzm Program Year L

Contact Name - Persan USAC should contact regarding this dats

lll_ﬂwl 0, hogll

m Contact Telephone Number - Number of person identified in data llne <030»  #¥ueasass oxc,

<038> Contact Ernafl Address - mm;:dpmmmmmdmuum weg) iwehagak . coop

«010>  Tribal Lsnd{s) onwhich ETC Serves

<020>

wi1linghas, Meknagik, Haoekotakl. Kkok, CTlslls Foint. end Tevisge Crecs

Tribal Government Engagement Ubligation

(] o

M your company serves Tribal fands, please solach {Yes,No, NA| for each 1hese boxes
o confitr tha status deseriber an the d {s). on lin= 320,
damaenstrates coordination with the Taibal governmant pursvant i

§ 54.31242)t9) Inchudes:

<0921

<023
903y
<924>
<925
<026y

MNoods assessmant and deploymant planning with a iocus on Tilbat
communily anchor inslitutions,

Frasibilily and sustainability planning;

Marketing serdeesin s eulturally sensltive manner;

Compltanca with Rights of way processes

Compliancs with Land Use permitting requiraments

Compliance with Facilities Sithng rules

Compliance with Envi tul Neview p

Compliance with Cultursl Preservation review processes
Compliance with Trikal Dush and Licensing raqul

Neme of Altached Document
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010> Study Area Code 813048
015>  Study Area Hsme LAGAY. BLVE & TEL
020> Program Year Jls
030> Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data ] Mclinel U, agth
<035>  Contact Telephone Number - Humber of person idontified in data fine <0305 sersiasiss exi.
«03%> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person identified in dota fine <0302 oyl lousshayki.coop
Ploase check this oK o confirm no terrestrial backhzul —
21120>  optlans exist within the supported area pursvant to § 54.213(G)
Please check Lhls box Lo confirm the reparting carrier offers
e broadlzand service of at least 1 Mbps downstroam and 256 kbps

wpstream within the supported area pursuant to § 54.313(G)
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<010>  Study Area Code 513014
<015>  Study Area Name KUSHAGHK ELKC L
<020>  Progivam Year 2013

<030> _ Contact Name - Person USAC should contact regardini this data

chae] 0. Hagl)

035> Contact Telephont Number - Number of person identified in data line <030>

SOTIAFIRES oAt

<039> Contact Email Address - Email Address of person Identified in data line <030>

ey LQUUM Y 4000,

<1210> Terms & Conditions of Volca Telephony Lifeline Plans

SUIDIRARIELN pdl

<1220>  Link to Public Website HYTP

Name of Attached Bocument

“Ploase check these boxes below to confirm that the attached document(s), on line 1210,
or the wabslto listed, on lina 1220, Ins tha raquirad infe lon 1o

§ 54.422(a){2) annual reporting for ETCs racaiving low-income support, carriers must
annually report:

<1221>  Information describing the terms and conditions of any voice
telephony service plans offered to Lifeline subscribers,

<1222> Details on the number of minutes provided as part of the plan,

<1223> Additional charges for toll calls, and rates for each such plan,

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION
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010> Study Aroa Code GHICIA
015> Study Area Hame HRURAUAN BLEL & T
arn Year ELV Y
Contact Name - Porson USAL ! i
034> Contact ¥ Humber - of e sun in it b 030> BOYBEI5I00 ewi,
<039 Caniatt frachl Address - Ensil Addiow of perion Wlentified i dats Nne <030%  wreq) | dustbpab ¢ oo

CHECK the boxes below 1o note compllanct o8 @ roulplent of licrementad Connact Americn Phasa | supgart, froten High Cest supseny, High Cost supget to olisal avcoss charge raductions, sml Connect Ameriza Plase 1|
suppart ak get fortls in 47 CER § SA.313(b],[ci Thied (16 s PPt R R

cremeiiel Connect Aameoriea Flaso | reparting

<0105 ek Your Conificatlon (47 CFR § S4.353 (b))
<}0lls 3rel Year Centilicatlon 147 CFR § 59,30 310)12)
Brlen Cap Carrler Rocolvlng Frazen Suppon Cortblication {47 CFR §SnaL{a)}
€inide 2043 Froven Support Cortllleatlan
€013y 2004 Frozon Support Caitllicatlon
<2014n 2015 Frosen Support Contilleation
<ip1ss 2006 2nd futire Frozon Srppon Certification

Prite Cap Corrder Comnett Aumer ca ICC Sippert {87 CFR § 54.313(dl}
<a0i8y Certif Suppen Used 15 Duild Broadlisnd

Connedt Amerles Flase i Raporidng {47 CTR § 54.313(a))
a0 3rdysar Droadband Sanvice Corfilicath

<2018 Sil yar Benagband Serdes Conlitealion

«20E Inisiiin Fragress Cortification

Pleasy chack the frm that ihe attached documentis}, o line 2021, conlains Ihe required information
RavE pm’u"m 1o § 54.;:; &:m‘"’r 1 8 reeiplont le“f l:a'\fd?hawli :;pnuonrt shall provide the number, namas, an.

of y Bnchior which bigen providing aceass to brosdbiand sorvied In the
pracading calendar year. 2

U O 0o Ol

2000 Iuterlm Progress Community Anchor nstinlons

Mamo of Allacked Usting Required Inf; i

Fage 10

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



010> iy hies Cody £13008
“0id  Hudyhicatizig LER et T A
i P s 2014
AT0E Lt i EH A P USAE slimded doiasd | egaelin ilﬂ\‘:ué ; Michgol @, el
L ose G Tedeplense Husilies - Humbed gf Jgenilicd dn elana e 430k AOTRIIHANL _aak
TTIOMgs Congaed [l e »(mlﬂé-ﬂ S heATIEd 14 dit s B A000h  ayerrd | 1 coug,
KIECK the Lokes bebow to nubn compibnes o 9 Tre prar seoddcn aealily plem (puiosent 1o 47 CFR 859,200( 1) sirl, far el s fase, smnming dth th " el 52
SO b S0 ANINED. | arblhay vwotity a0 th Infastath J o ihlt (oemand In s sttiahd gt

13039| Fragien Hapart on S Yaan Men
YAletont € ealeated |17 CE § 44 UMAID M0}

I B I e e e e T

ek This Doo b canfi hat o aiacdied decwmanids), an ke 3012 coniaing U sequinod inlomialian pursusnl (o
AN}, tho catins gl prossda B numben, names, and oudiossos ol Fommunty ancion kaliutons b slich bepan D

Ptasa el
200 50303 41)]
Proviting iecors o icailaad soivics I la procodeg aslongar yoas.

{3047 Commuahy Anchor inubion |42 000 § 5430400001

mmﬁmumﬂlwmmuhw Tieanml mlaranten

[073) 1 paur onipamy a Prheansy el IOA Eairlen [47 000 4 34,3 1HIRE]) [iesfilah
[3004] 0y owayunt coimfvamy file alie RS dransi | egnl [¥isfiig)

Menage cluck thoes boees 19 coaunt hal Iho allacsod documeniis), o Bng 300T, contalng b ropuliod Bulimiton puriuant o § F30I0R) complande ieiinea:
|3603) Clectiamk capy cf theie annual RS sepoits O slag Ropion ot

Velegmnumenlc i Odugwen ]
13000h Documerdfs) for Dalanen Sheal, leome SHal i and o Cneh Flow m
1% Wuboempenie b ves on bne 1014 alach yem uompang's EUS amewal
nggtanl wind 30 gwymns] DR kiDn

VLB €1 ALLME el FIturmen) | e e uaiign
F0unh ot abg g o e e 30 1, Ivour dpomany 2aited] trea/Hek @D

PR feagiom, [ yid én line- 300 B, pl Ui Lukes eSaw ki
canhlpn your wskelen, om iing MG peseand g b 33500 T), contalng

13018] ke n agrh Lok swdins finaacil sraveineaty o 129 nilian &l repark in a formial cormparabse 1o U3 Upeiating e Llor Telocomnaumbcatioan m

ranzn)  Bocwmons) for Balante Shend, oo Skitgmant ard Slaanen | o Gazh Fhoes
[sLHT] letrer e | dont oot LRl Lt hans Lk pet forinesd il Tt il iy,

W the d popanng Hoieg o Lng 3078, plhaayt thadh the baret befoy
N 2ol ok sutvinBiban, @i lias 076 purcuai o 4 D43 0B(H2L

cntalm:
12031]  Copyaf il dinanea] fateniont whiih (ks Tuven il oo 40 neeivw iy s
coililied (bt I dinanehal gk In 3
Tefinal Lt s RS I i 1or

Loregnen,
[3923)  Unleabriag bl minn putgocied Lo o revlew by an ldependunt daifipd
puld acetmian|

=
=
H

Laorg) 4 f i ke cerlal alimn,
faos) 1s] It Bakanee Slioct, l6canty anst Seal o

RIADLIAEIN2E. Al
(E R Tating

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

Pape 11

Fage 0§



Fafu i2

010> Study Ares Coda 612018

<015> Study Area Name SHAGAK KLEC & THL
<02)> Program Year 2015

<030> Comtaci Name - Person USAC should contact regarding this data Wichael 0. Meghi

<0353 Contact Talephone Numbar - Numbar of person identilied In data line <030> 9070425251 ext.
<039>  Contact Emall Address - Emall Addross of parson Identified in data line <0305

suoagr 1 i Grushngak . coon

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE REPORTING CARRIEN, IF THE REFORYIMNG CARRIER 1S FILING ANNUAL REPORTING ON ITS OWN BEHALF:

Certiflcation of Officer as to the Accuracy of the Data Reported for the Annual Reporting for CAF or Ul Reclplents

| certify that 1 am an officer of the reporting carder; sy responsibilities Includo ensuring the oecuracy of the annual reporting requirements for unlversal servlce support
2nd, 1a the best of my knowledge, the nt B }on this form and n 2oy attach Is 1

[ame of Reporting Carrier:  BUSHAGAK BLET & THl

F!a“,,__“, nodzed Offlcgr:  CRRTIVIRD ONLINE ate  06/26/2014

2imed name of Authorized Clficer: Hichaal iegli

{ritte or position of Authorizad Offlear: CROSON

Telephono number of Autherized Officer: 90M8425251 ext,
Ltudy#reaCodecheportinnCirriar: 1204p Fillng Gue Date for this torm; 770173014

Porsons willlully piaking false statements on Usls farm can be gunished by e or forfeitare onduer the Communicatians Act of 1934, 47 LLE.C, §§ 502, S08(b), or fine or imprlsoament
under Tite 18 of the Unived Status Codw, 15 0U.5.C. § 1001

Page 12
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<010>  Study Area Code 61011

<01S>  Study Area Nama AUBRAONG ELEC & Thl
<020>  Program Year 201%

<030> Contact Namic - Person USAC should contact regarding this da: itichael 0, Moyll
<035>  Conlact Telephono Numbar - Number of person identilied In dato llne <030> 3090425251 oxt,

<039> Contact émail Adduess - Emolt Addiess of puison idantifled In data line <030>  sabd {9nastugak. coup

<701>  Residentlal Local Service Charge Lffective Date

<702>

<703>

Single State-wide Residential Local Service Chaige

S

Residentlal Local

S T e e (o

MSt{dlhwERWed}tvn

Towal ;v line Rates s ml
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NUSHAGAX ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE INC.
(NETC)
FIVE YEAR SERVICE QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PLAN

PREAMBLE

This 5 year improvement plan is a section of the Company’s 2014 Annual Report. [t is in
compliance with § 54.313(a)(1) adopted in the FCC's USFACC Transformation Order (i1~
161).  This document alsa incorporates further clarifications identified in subsequent
Reconsideration Ordlers, as applicabie, in effect prior to the filing of the Annual Report.

Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative Inc. (NETC) bas carefully developed its
impravement plan, concentrating on the delivery and continuation of a robust netwaork which
provides, at a minimum, the federally required voice end broadband connectivity as
stipulated by regulatory yule. In certain situations (and as noted herein), the plan muy also
incorporate specific state requirements,

NETC advises that this improvement plan has been carefully crafted, matching measured
network deployment, improvement and quality service levels with konown {financial
implications of the Transformation Ovder upon the company'’s support cash-flows. The
uncertainty of such cash flows being received in the outer-years s a result of curcent and
potential regulatery action on rural rate-of-return carriers has resulted in the Company taking
a balanced yet realistic approach.

The environment in which the Company operates remains dynamic, not static. As a result,
NETC reserves the opportunity to modify its plan in response to further regulatory decisions
as they are adopted, and their implication upon the Company’s financial viability in
providing the required services and service level quality becomes known.

NETC will re-cvaluate this plan on an anpual basis,  Action, however, may also be taken
abruptly on the presented plan for both current and outer years in the event of evolving
regulatory conditions and/or changes in technology (vendor)-driven support. All
adjustments to the improvement plan in this document will be reflected and explained in
subsequent annual repor(s.

OVERVIEW

NETC, as an Eligible Telecommunications Carrier (ETC) provides Universal Service supported
services (o approximately 1692 customers in three exchanges covering approximately 6,336
square miles,

Consistent with Commisgsion reguirements, this Service Quality Improvement Plan addresses only
NETC’s regulated eligible telecommunications carrier operations.! A detailed description of

"Per 47 C.IR, § 54.314, federal USF support, "will be used only for the provision, maintenance, and
upgrading of facilities and services for which the support is intended.” 17 investments or expenses are for
service arcas larger than the supported service areas, then allocations of the expenditures are required.
cusersimichaeivd s\S-yenr plintnele 2014 narrative Jor 3 year plan rev-| (ks-1) final(1).docx
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NETC’s plans for the pravision of the supported services in the five-year period starting with
January 2015 s provided herein,

IMPROVEMENT PLANS BY YEAR (2015-2019 inclusive)

| _

NETC is & member/owned cooperative providing leleccommunications services as a local
exchange carler. NETC serves the communitics of Dillingham, Manckotak, Clarks Point, Ekuk
and Portage Creelk in Southwest Alaska, The communitics are tocated near Nushagak Bay at the
confluence of the Weod and Nushagak Rivers, an inlet of Bristol Bay, an arm of the Bering Sea
in the North Pacific. With 3 exchanges, it serves a current population of approximately 2,836,
over & geographic area of approximately 6,336 square miles. In gencral, the service territory is a
mixture of ratling tidal lands swrrounded by mountains. Located approximately 350 air miles
Southwest of Anchorage Alaska. The service tervitory between Dilingham and South Aleknagik
is inter-conneeted by a secondary state highway. North Aleknagik is accessible via boat and
small aireraft in summer or snow machine in the winter, Access to the surrounding villages of
Clarks Point, Manokotak, Eluk and Postage Creek are accessible via aireraft and seasonally via
snow machine and/or boat. All goods and services must be either ransported to the service ares
by aircraft or scasonally by ocean baige.

chusersimichieldocuments\§-yea planete 2014 naative for § year plan rev-1 (ks-1) final{] }.docx
Pape2al'§
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POPULATION INCOME
= s

Populatian it of hauseholds Median  capita % below poverty line
Dillingham 2466 51,458 24,537 11.70%
Aleknagik 215 22,570 10,673 40.80%
Manakotalk 442 26,875 9,294 35.30%
Clarks pt. 62 28,125 10,588 45.70%
Portage creek 2 N/A N/A N/A
Eleule 1 N/A N/A N/A

3192

N/A = Information not available

cnsershnichaeNdocomentshs-yenr plantneie 2014 maative for § year plan vey=1 (ks-1) final(1).doex
) | .
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SUMMARY DISCUSSION OF PLANS BY YEAR BY EXCHANGKE
2015

Dillingham

cnserssmichaeNdocuments\s-year plantnete 2014 narrative for 5 year plan rev-1 (ks-1) final(1).doex
Paged of' 8
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Manokotak

Ekuk/Clarks Point

2016

Dillingham

cusersimichaci\doenments\a-year planwneic 2014 narrative for § year plan rev-1 (ls-1) final()).docx
Page S ol'§
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Manokotalk

Eknk/Clarks Poin(

bt
=
ot
~X

Dillingham

Manolwiak

crusersimehae documems\i-year plasnele 20014 sarative for 5 year plan rev-1 {ks-1) final{| ) docx
Page 6ol §
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Elaul/Clarks Point

2018

Dillingham

Manokotak

Elkuk/Clarks Poini

2019

Dillingham

Manokotal

Clarks Point

¢ usesinichaehdocuments\-year plantnete 2014 namative for § year pian reve1 (ks-1) final(1).docx
Page 7 ol 3
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Consumer Protection

Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperative, Inc. complies with the requirements of 47
CFR Past 64 Subpart U, Customer Proprietary Network Information and the Federat
Trade Commission Red Flag rules to prevent identity theft. A manual for each of those
programs is in place and is part of the employees’ handbook. Employee training is
conducted annually and new hires are instructed on the programs as required by their job
functions.

Service Quality Standards

Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperative, Inc. complies with the service standards
of the Regulatory Commission of Alaska as promulgated in the RCA Statutes 3 AAC
33.450(a) and (c) Lligible Telecommunications Carrier Designation Consumer protection
and service quality.

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperative, Ine,
2014 Annual 54.313 Report of High-Cost Recipient

54.313{a){6) Abilify to Remain Functional in Emergency Situations

Back-up Power
Teleo Name has the following back-up power capabilities:
Switches — stand alone and/or host

b Diltingham avea - Metaswitch. Gel Cell battery backup, 2,090 Ah, st
ran time of 12 hours

2. Clarks point area - Redeom Switeh, Sealed Lead acid battery, 600 Ah wi

Solar panels. Estimated run time o' 24 hours,

Manokotak arca — Redeom Switch, Located in AT&T caeth station facilii

l.ead acid battery-Fstimated run time 8 hours

e

Subseriber carrier (DLC, AFC, OPM, ete.)

Dillingham area Kanananalk. Sealed Lead neid battery, 600 Ah, 30 hour
estimated run time,

Dillingham area Lupin Dr, Sealed Lead acid battery, 600 Ah. 30 houy estimaied
run time,

Dillingham area. Wasky Rd. Sealed 1ead acid battery, 600 Ah, 30 how eslimated
run time,

Dillinghaim area, 9 mile lake road, Sealed Lead acid batfery, 600 Ab. 30 howr
estimated rom fime,

Diffingham area, ravens view, Scaled Lead aeid battery, 600 Ah, 30 hour
estinated run fime.

Dillinghain area, Aleknagik south shore, Sealed l.ead acid battery, 600 Ah, 30
hour estimated yrun ime.

Dillingham area, Aleknagik north shore, Sealed Lead aeid battery, 600 Ah, 30
hour estimated run time.

Manokotak area, Manokotak heights, Sealed Lead acid battery, 600 Ab. 30 hoyr
estimated run time.

Network Interface Devices (NIDs)

Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperafive, Inc, has 1713 customers
with metallic (copper) connections to the Central Office and their NIDs
are powered from (he Central Office.

Nushagak Electrie & Telephone Cooperative, Ine, has 3 customers with
non-metallic (fiber optic) connections 1o the Central Office. These
Facilities are equipped with 100% backup diese!] generation systems.

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



Abiliry to reroute raffic around damaged facilities:

Nushagak Electrie & Telephone Cooperative e, hag built redundant facilities belween its
exchanges and / oy 10 its connecting company / toll tandem, This redundant facility is in the
form of a SONET ring (or other technology) with alternate physical facilities between Nushapak
Ylectrie & Telephone Cooperative Ine.,, AT&T, and GCI, ifs interconnection to the Public

Switched Telephone Network,

Capability to manage traffic spikes resulting from emergency situations
Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperative, Inc, has 1716 customers, switching
capacity of 250,000 simultanecus calls, and transport capacity for 2,016 simultaneous
calls. Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperative, Ine. takes no vesponsibility for the
capabilities of interconnected networks to manage traffic spikes resulting from
emergency situations, but will continue its best efforts for its networks during such
events.

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



November 21, 2013

Nushagak Electtic and Telephone Inc. request to Tribal Entities concerning
fund pooling mechanisms for communications services.

Nushagak Electric and Lelephone Cooperative Inc. (NETC) would like to meet with
your organization discuss planning options for fulfilling tribal cotnmunications needs
In your atea,

NETC would like to meet with you when it is convenient for you and yout
sepresentatives,

If you do not have meeting facilities available NETC will provide a place for us to
meet.

If you have any furthet questions or require additional information please do not
hesitate to contact NIET'C, 1 can be contacted at 842-6316 or via email at

mmegli@nushagak.coop. Additionally, Michael Favors can be contacted at 842-6367
ot via email ar mfavors@nushagak coop.

Sincetely,

Mike Megli
CEO/GM

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



Nushagal Electric and Telephone Cooperative (NETC) has performed the following items to comply with
the Federal Communications Commission requirement for Exchange Telephene Carriers (ETCs) to
engage with Tribal entities 1o assess their communication needs on Tribal lands,

NETC mailed letters on November 25, 2013 to the following Tribal Entities In our service area:
Alelknagik Traditional Councli

Curyung Tribal Council

Portage Creel Vlllage Council

Manokotalk Village Council

Ekul village Council

Clarks Point Village Councit

Choggiung and Bristol Bay Native Association were removed from our Hist. Chogglung informed NETC
they were not a Tribal Entity on November 26, 2012, During NETC's meeting with Bristol Bay Native
Association (BBNA) on Recembrer 4, 2012 it was recommended by BBNA that NETC consult with the
Ihdividual Tribal Entities in NETC's serving area.,

Aleknagile Traditional Council

NETC has been working with the Aleknagik Traditional Councll towards a master easement agreement
with Aleknagile Natives Limited. The agreement is in legal review at this time and we expect to finalize
the agreement in 2014,

Curyung Tribal Council

Curyung is a recognized tribal entity however NETC has not received any request for services on their
lands. There are no schools or anchor institutions for NETC to serve on Curyung lands with the
exception of volce and broadband to their offices located in Dillingham.

Portage Crealk Village Council

Portage Creek is a village Iocated on the Nushagak River. There is no school, library, ete. The village is
currently occupied by one year round family and the remainder of the village Is wtilized seasanally.

Air traffic or summer boat service is the anly access to this village.

Manolotale Village Council

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



NETC currently provides the copper cable necessary to provide voice and broadband services to the
Manokotak Schoal and Health Clinic. NETC is currently in the process of constructing the fiber netwark
necessary to provide terrestrial middle mile connectivity.

Air traffic is the only access to this village,
Ekuk VIllage Council

Ekuk Village located near Clarks Point does not have any full time residents with the exception of a
watchman at the cannery located near Ekuk. There is no school, library or health clinic located in Ekuk,

Air traffic is the only access to this village,
Clarks Point Village Councll

NETC provides voice services to the Village councii office. NETC provides the copper facilities to link the
village health clinic to the telemedicine network, The village school was closed in 2012, There is no
library In Clarks Point,

Air traffic is the anly access to this village,

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



54.313 Lifeline customers MOU and additional toll charges

Lifeline subscribers receive the same residential service as a regular subscriber, but ata
reduced monthly recurring rate. Thus, lifeline subscribers have an unlimited number of local
calling minutes. As for toll, lifeline subscribers, similar to every Nushagak Electric & Telephone
Cooperative, Inc. subsceriber, are free to choose their own toll usage pians through IXCs that
serve Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperative, Inc.

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To assist you in your responsibilities as a member of the Board of Directors, this section
summarizes the most significant conclusions reached and issues addressed during our audit of
Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT CONCLUSIONS AND ISSUES

We have completed our audit and issued our report dated March 24, 2014. Based on our work
performed:

e We rendered an unmodified opinion on the December 31, 2013 financial statements.

e We have not identified any conditions which we consider to be material weaknesses as
defined by generally accepted auditing standards. We did, however, identify a
deficiency in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

e We have not identified any instances which we consider to be material instances of
noncompliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, and contracts.

¢ We identified instances of noncompliance with reporting requirements of grant
agreements during our examination of expenditures of state financial assistance in
accordance with the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State
Single Audits.

o We received the full cooperation of management and staff throughout the organization
and were kept informed as to developments and plans affecting our audit scope.

e No restrictions were placed on the scope of our work.

The following reports include the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes
with letters required by RUS and for the Alaska State Single Audit. Also included are
communications for the benefit of those charged with governance, as required by professional
standards.

6B0 HAWTHORNE AVENUE SE, #1 40, SALEM, OR 97301
PHONE: 503.585.7774 FAX: 503.364.8405
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE
COOPERATIVE, INC.

To the Board of Directors

Year Ended December 31, 2013
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March 24, 2014

To the Board of Directors
Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.

Dear Members of the Board:

We have audited the financial statements of Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. (the
Cooperative} for the year ended December 31, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated March
24, 2014.

Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and liming of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated October 7, 2013. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management is responsible for the seleclion and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the Cooperative are described in Note 1 to the December 31,
2013 financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopled and the applications of existing
policies were not changed during 2013. We noted no transactions entered into by the Cooperative
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and hecause of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. Significant accounting estimates reflected in the financial
statements include; the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, and fair value measurements of financial instruments and investments.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we are not aware of any significant changes in accounting
eslimates or in management’s judgments relating to such estimates. We evaluated the key facters and
assumptions used in determining that those estimates are reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures are those related to long term debt, and effects of
changes in the regulatory environment on the Cooperative,

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.

680 HAWTIHORNE AVENUE SE, #1 40, SaLemM, DR 57301
PHone: S03.585.7774 Fax; 503.3264, 8405
PORTLAND, OR | SALEM, OR | CARLSBAD, CA | ESCONDIDD, CA | 94N DIEGO, OA | ANCHODRAGE, AK
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DIFFICULTIES ENCOUNTERED IN PERFORMING THE AUDIT
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are ftrivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

DiSAGREEMENTS WITH MANAGEMENT

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS
We have requested certain representations from management thal are included in the management
representation letter dated March 24, 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONSULTATION WITH OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matlers, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” in certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle io the Cooperative’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

OTHER AUDIT FINDINGS OR [SSUES

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Cooperative's auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management,
and others within the Cooperative and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We will be pleased to discuss this report with you further at your convenience.

AKTLLP

AKT LLP
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COOPERATIVE, INC.

Financial Statements

with Supplemental Information and Required Reports
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC,

Financial Statements with Supplemental Information and RUS Letters
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Nushagak Elsctric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.
Dillingham, Alaska

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.
(the Cooperative), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related
statements of operations and patronage capital, and cash flows for the years then ended,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internai control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
slatements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant lo the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significanl accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materiai respects, the financial
position of Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperalive, Inc. at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of ils
operaticns and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Matters

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financlal statements as a whole. The
combining divisional stalements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with audiling standards generally accepied in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the informaltion is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of state financial assistance, as required by the State of Alaska Audit Guide and
Compliance Supplement for State Single Audils is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information direclly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in retation to the financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated March 24, 2014, on our
consideration of Nushagak Electric & Telephone Cooperative, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal contrel over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gavernment
Auditing Standards in considering the Cooperative's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

AKTLLP

Salem, Oregon
March 24, 2014
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.
Balance Sheets
Cecember 31, 2013 and 2012
ASSETS 2013 2012
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
General $ 2,985,686 3 3,597,518
Construction 2,306 2,306
Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $50,716 (561,837 in 2012) 1,624,824 1,636,142
Materials and supplies inventory 464,848 508,508
Fuel inventory 3,280,102 3,038,535
Prepaid expenses 34,584 28,429
Total Current Assets 8,392,360 8,709,436
Other Assats:
Investments in associated organizatians 981,442 879,795
Deferred charges 460,265 480,624
Total Other Assets 1,441,707 1,360,419
Property, Plant and Equipment
In service 30,750,540 30,637,387
Under construction 1,412,666 1,293,501
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 32,163,206 31,930,888
Less accumulated depreciation 23,056,914 22,463,902
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 9,106,292 9,466,986
Total Assels $ 18,940,359 § 19,536,841
LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 279,000 % 360,237
Lina of credit 2,892,791 2,963,639
Accounts payable 171,153 349,544
Consumer deposits 199,725 166,455
Other accrued liabilities 602,661 605,034
Total Current Liabilities 4,145,330 4,444 909
Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities 1,853,016 2,130,686
Total Liabilities 5,998,346 6,575,595
Equities:
Patronage capital 12,878,166 12,801,133
Other equities 63,847 60,113
Total Equities 12,942,013 12,961,246
Total Liabilities and Equities $ 18,940,359 § 19,536,841

See accompanying notes to financial sta&g@f&th
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Statements of Operations and Patronage Capital
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Operating Revenues:

Electric

Local network service

Network access services

Cable, net of retransmission fees of $236,955 ($228,120 in 2012)
Internet

Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Power production
Distribution
Plant specific
Plant non-specific
Depreciation
Customer
Administrative and general
Cable and internet
Operating taxes

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Margin (Loss)

Other Income (Expense):
Patronage allocations
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Non-regulated net income

Net Other Income (Expense)
Net Margin

Beginning Patronage Capital
Patronage Capital Retired
Other Adjustments

Ending Patronage Capital

See accompanying notes to financial statements FOR PUBLIC INSPEGTION

2013 2012
8,286,699 $ 8,612,739
599,877 637,990
2,739,178 2 855,781
218,166 222,576
724,145 502,429
48,622 47,431
12,616,687 12,878,946
6,096,185 6,021,007
365,547 340,110
1,098,134 1,131,472
363,283 363,390
1,203,307 1,313,996
293,534 337,551
2,274,039 2,144,992
859,168 601,766
74,780 77,738
12,628,067 12,331,722
(11,380) 547,224
152,624 108,070
4,906 5,673
(193,820) (216,577)
50,824 56,690
14,534 (46,144)
3,154 501,080
12,901,133 12,422,535
(27,048) (23,407)
925 925
12,878,166 $ 12,901,133




NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COCPERATIVE, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net margin
Adjustments ta reconcile net margin to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Noncash patronage allocations
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Materials and supplies inventory
Fuel inventory
Prepaid expenses
Deferred charges
Accounts payable
Consumer deposits
Other accrued liahilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of plant

Proceeds from grant reimbursements
Proceeds from sale of assets
Patronage dividends received

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net borrowings (payments) on line of credit
Payments on long-term debt
Capital credit payments, net
Refunds of federal communications excise tax

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents, ending

Cash Paid During the Year for Interest, net of amounts capitalized

See accompanying notes to financial Staﬁtﬁ@f&lﬁn CEERPUBLE laREsTioN
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC,

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization
Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc. (the Cooperative) was created effective January 1, 2002 with

the merger of Nushagak Electric Cooperative, Inc. and Nushagak Telephone Cooperative, Inc. The Cooperative is
an Alaska cooperative corporation providing electric, telecommunications, cable television and internet services
within and around the Dillingham, Alaska area.

Basis of Accounting
The Cooperative's financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to regulated enterprises.

Interdivisional Transactions

The operations of the Cooperative are segregated into the electric division, the telephone division, and the cable
division, for management and external reporting purposes. Each division has transactions with the other divisions
in the normal course of conducting business. For example, the electric division pays the telephone division for
telephone service. Because these amounts are not considered material to the financial statements, there have
been no eliminations for interdivisional revenues and expenses except for interest on interdivision loans.

Use of Estimates

The Cooperative uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Those estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the
reported revenues and expenses,

Regulation
The electric division of the Cooperative maintains its accounting records in accordance with the Uniform System

of Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regutatory Commission as modified for electric borrowers of the
Rural Utilities Service (RUS). The telephone divisien of the Cooperative maintains its accounting records in
accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts, as prescribed by the Federal Communications Commission
(FCC). As a result, the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States by the
Cooperative differs in certain respects from the application by non-regulated entities. Such differences primarily
concern the time at which certain items enter in the determination of net margin.

The telephone division of the Cooperative is subject to limited regulation by the FCC and the Regulatory
Commission of Alaska (RCA) regarding the provision of telecommunication services. The local exchange
operations are exempt from rate regulation by the RCA.

The electric division of the Cooperative must comply with applicable regulatory standards related to generation
and transmissicn.

The Cooperative is subject to normal environmental standards imposed by federal, state, and local environmental
laws and reguiations. Environmental expenditures are expensed or capitalized depending on their future
economic benefit. Liabilities for such expenditures are recorded when it is probable that obligations have been
incurred and the cost can be reasonably estimated.

Regulatory and legislative actions, as well as future regulations, could have a significant impact on the Company's
future operations and financial condition. See Note 1, National Broadband Plan and FCC Crder.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows; the Cooperative considers all cash and short-term investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that present an insignificant risk of change in value due to
changes in interest rates or other factors to be cash equivalents.

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents, continued

The Cooperative maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts that are insured by the Federal Deposit [nsurance
Coporalon (FOIC)Up to'a imit of 250000, |
& The Cooperative has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
believes il is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

The Cooperative provides an allowance for doubtful accounts that is based on a review of outstanding
receivables, historical collection information, and existing economic conditions. Receivables frem subscribers are
due 30 days after the issuance of the invoice, Receivables from other exchange carriers are typically outstanding
from 30 to 60 days before payment is received. Delinquent accounts are charged to uncollectible expense when
it is determined that the account will not be collected. Receivables past due more than 80 days are considered
delinquent. Delinquent receivables are written off based on individual credit evaluation and specific circumstances
of the customer.

Investments in Associaled Organizations
Investments in associated organizaticns are stated at cost.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Cooperative's financial instruments, none of which are held for trading purposes, include cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and notes payable. The Cooperative estimates that the fair
value of all of these non-derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2013 and 2012 does not differ materially
from the aggregate carrying value of its financial instruments recorded in the accompanying balance sheets.

Fuel, Materials and Supplies [nventory
For the electric division, inventory of fuel, antifreeze, lube oil, and materials are recorded at the lower of weighted
average cost or markel. For the telephone division, materials and supplies are stated at average cost.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Properly, plant, and equipment in service and under construction are stated at cost, including appropriate direct
and indirect costs associated with construction. Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when
incurred. Renewals and betterments are capitalized. For regulated and non-regulated assets, the Cooperative
provides for depreciation on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, in
accordance with rates consistent with industry standards, which range from 5 to 75 years. In accordance with
composite group depreciation methodology, when a portion of the Cocperative's regulated property, plant, and
equipment is retired in the ordinary course of business, the gross book value Is eliminated from the utility plant
accounts and such costs, plus removal expenses, less salvage, are charged to accumulated depreciation and no
gain or loss is recognized.

Upon retirement, sale, or other disposition of non-regulated property, plant, and equipment, the cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gains or losses are included in
operations.

Extraordinary maintenance costs incurred by the electric division of the Cooperative are initially deferred and
subsequently amortized to operating expenses over periods generally ranging from 18 to 60 months. Utility rates
are stabilized at levels intended 1o fund these maintenance costs as they are amortized.

Contributions in aid of construction for the electric division are credited to the associated cost of construction of
property units.

The Cooperative follows the policy of capitalizing interest as a component of the cost of property, plant, and

equipment constructed for its own use. The Cooperative uses a weighted-average interest rate based on total
Ioni-term-debt- [ T e S e

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Revenue Recaognition

The Cooperative’s billing for the usage of electricity reflecls metered usage through approximately the fifteenth
day of the month. The Cooperative estimates and records the revenue eamed for the usage from the last billing
through the end of the accounting period.

The Cooperative’s monthly service fees derived from basic and local telephone service, as well as for cable and
internet service, are billed in advance. Advance billings are recorded as a liability or reduction of receivables and
subsequently transferred into income in the period earned. Usage sensitive revenues are billed in arrears.

Network Access Revenues

Network access revenue is received under a system of access charges. Access charges represent a
methedology by which local lelephone companies, including the Cooperative, charge the long-distance catrier for
access and interconnection to local facilities. The Cooperative has elected to file access tariffs through the
National Exchange Carriers Association (NECA) and the Alaska Exchange Carriers Association {AECA). These
access tariffs are subject to approval by the FCC for interstate charges and the Regulatory Commission of Alaska
{RCA) for intrastate charges.

When network access revenues have been received pursuant to the settlement and access agreements above,
they are then either placed into a common pooling arrangement with other exchange carriers for redistribution or
kept by the Cooperative. The redistributions are made according to formulas established by the governing boards
of the pools and are generally based upon expenses incurred and investiments maintained.

The Cooperative participates in various pooling arrangements with NECA and AECA.

Settlement, access, and pool distribution revenues are recorded when the amounts become determinable.
Related expenses are recorded when incurred. Subsequent true-ups and retroactive adjustments, which are
generally allowed for a period of 24 months {NECA pool only) after the close of the related calendar year, are
recorded in the year in which such adjustments become determinable, based upon studies prepared by outside
consultants.

In addition to recoveries from the pools, the Cooperative also receives revenues from the Universal Service High
Cost Loop Fund (HCL) and other support mechanisms administered by the Universal Service Administrative
Company (USAC). These universal service support revenues are intended to compensate the Cooperative for
the high cost of providing service in rural areas. The amount of support received from HCL is based on the
number of customers served and the cost of providing service in that area being in excess of the national average
cost per loop, as determined by the FCC. The Cooperative also receives funding from state universal service
funds. These support revenues are included in the network access revenues in the accompanying financial
statements.

National Broadband Plan and FCC Order

In 2010 the FCC issued the National Broadband Plan which outlined a long-term plan to increase broadband
penetrations and services throughout the United States of America. The plan further outlined a proposed long-
term phase-out of access charges (referred to as Intercarrier Compensation) and moved to support mechanisms
based on broadband services rather than the current Universal Service High Cosl Loop Fund administered by
USAC.

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 8



NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

National Breadband Plan and FCC Crder. continued

In response to the plan, the FCC on October 27, 2011, approved Report and Order 11-161 (the Order), that
begins the process of reforming the universal service and intercarrier compensation (ICC) systems and adopts
support for broadband-capable networks as an express universal service principle. The Order further creates the
Connect America Fund which will ultimately replace all existing high-cost support mechanisms as well as help
facilitate ICC reforms.

The key provisions of the order include:
+ Capping the federal universal service fund at current levels
¢ Placing limitations on capital and operating spending
« Establishing local rate benchmarks
s Capping the per-line support amount for the universal service high cost loop fund at $250 per month

= Phase out of local switching support and the establishment of the CAF for recovery of investment and
expenses related to the provision of switching services

+ Reforming the ICC system by adopting a plan to transition from access charges to a bill and keep
framework. The transition period for rate-of-return carriers such as the Cooperative is approximately 9 years
from the date of the order,

» Adoption of a monthly Access Recovery Charge as a transitional recovery mechanism to mitigate the impact
of reduced intercarrier revenues

The Order was effective December 29, 2011 and implementation began July 1, 2012. As of the implementation
date CAF reccvery is calculated based on the frozen fiscal year 2011 interstale switched access revenue
requirement, plus certain 2011 intrastale access revenues, and will decline annually by 5% during the transition
period.

As of December 31, 2013 the Cooperative is transitioning its local rates and is not subject to the $250 per line
support cap. Furthermore, for the period ended December 31, 2013 the impacts 1o the Cooperative related to the
5% annual decline in swilched access revenues have not been significant.

The overall reform process will take place in phases and will take several years Lo implement. Furthermore, the
Order includes a Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking. The FCC has issued numerous Orders for
Reconsideration and continues to seek comments on various items. As a result, the ultimate outcome of these
proceedings and their impact is uncertain at this time.

Excise Tax Refunds
Refunds of Federal communication excise taxes resulting from the Cooperative's status as a tax exempt
cooperative are recorded as a direct increase to members' patronage capital accounts.

Patronage Capital
Patronage capital consists of undistributed net margins allocated to individual members and accumulated since
inception, less distributions to members. Under the bytaws of the Cooperative, the distribution of such patronage
capital to members of the Cooperative is at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and may be restricted under
covenants of RUS morigage notes.

Other Equities
Other equities consist of unclaimed distributions of patronage capital credits lo members transferred to the

Cooperative under the laws of the State of Alaska.

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION



NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

Income Taxes

The Cooperalive has been granted an exemption from Federal income laxes under Section 501(c)(12) of the
Internal Revenue Code, except for “unrelated” business income. However, in any year for which greater than
15% of gross revenue is derived from nonmember services, the Cooperative becomes a taxable cooperative.
The Cooperative was exempt from income taxes in 2013 and 2012, The Cooperative is also exempt from state
income taxes as a gross revenue tax on cooperatives overrides the filing of state income tax.

In years when the Cooperative is taxable, federal income taxes payable by taxable cooperatives are computed
differently from taxes payable by other corporations, primarily because cooperatives are allowed to deduct
margins allocated to patrons within 8%z months after the end of each taxable year.

The Cooperative follows accounting standards generally accepled in the United States of America related to the
recognition of uncertain tax positions. The Cooperative recognizes accrued interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax positions as part of the income tax provision, when applicable. There were no amounts accrued in
the financial statements related to uncertain tax positions in 2013 or 2012, The Cooperative files income tax
returns in the United States, state and local jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Cooperaiive is no longer
subject to U.S. Federal, state or local tax examination by tax authorities for years before 2009.

Subsequent Events
The Cooperative has evaluated subseqguent events through March 24, 2014, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Note 2 - Investments in Associated Organizations
Investments in associated organizations consisted of the following at December 31:
2013 2012

Electric Division
National Rural Utilities Cooperative
Finance Corporation (NRUCFC}:
Capital term certificates $
Patronage capital credits
Membership

Alaska Rural Electric Cooperative Association (ARECA)
Insurance Exchange, assigned equity
Nushagak Telephone Cooperative, Inc. patronage capital credits

Total Electric Division

Telephone Division
Alaska Rural Electric Cooperative Association (ARECA)
Insurance Exchange, assigned equity
Rural Telephone Finance Cooperative, patronage capita! credits
CoBank, patronage capital credits
Nushagak Electric Cooperative, Inc. patronage capital credits
Total Telephene Division

Total Investments in Associated Organizations $

i 1y
 limd e
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 3 - Property, Plant and Equipment

Listed below are the major classes of praperty, plant, and equipment in service at December 31, including related

composite depreciation rates:
Depreciation

Percentage 2013 2012

Electric Division

Land and improvements -

Production plant 3.0to 7.0%

Distribution plant 2.3t04.0%

General plant 4.0to0 20.0%
Telephone Division

Land and improvements “

General plant and support 1.3t0 13.5%

Central office 6.010 12.6%

Cable and wire facilities 3.910 20.0%
Cable Division

tand and improvements -

Building and equipment 4.0t0 20.0%

Head end equipment 20.0%

Premise equipment 14.3%

Internet equipment 12510 13.0%

Distribution facilities 8.0%

Total Property, Plant and Equipment in Service $ $

In 2009, the Cooperalive was awarded a $4,031,500 grant from the Alaska Energy Authority (AEA), a public
corporation of the State of Alaska, under the Renewable Energy Fund. The grant funds are to be used for
feasibility studies, permitting, and engineering costs related to a potential hydropower project. During the year
ended December 31, 2013, the Cooperative expended $472,600 in grant funds ($741,448 in 2012) bringing
cumulative expenditures of grant funding to $1,831,626. Reimbursements received for expenditures of state
grant funds during the year ended December 31, 2013 were $668,547 ($984,178 in 2012), bringing the total
reimbursements for the grant to $1,809,617. Grant expenditures related to the year ended December 31, 2013,
and requested subsequent to year end were $22,009 ($217,956 at December 31, 2012).

In 2010, the Cooperative was awarded a $125,000 grant from the AEA under the Denali Commission. The grant
funds are to be used for environmental and feasibility studies, permitting, and conceptual engineering related to a
potenlial wind generation project. Project costs totaled $97,686 as of December 31, 2013 {$88,438 as of
December 31, 2012). Grant expenditures related to the year ended December 31, 2013 and requested
subsequent to year end were $9,248 {none at December 31, 2012),

In 2012, the Cooperative was awarded a $1,000,000 grant from the Alaska Department of Commerce,
Community, and Economic Development, Division of Community and Regional Affairs. The grant funds are to be
used for the purchase and construction of an 850,000 gallon fuel tank within the Cooperative's existing fuel tank
farm. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Cooperative expended $882,489 in grant funds ($117,511
in 2012) bringing cumulative expenditures of grant funding to $1,000,000. Reimbursements received for
expenditures of state grant funds during the year ended December 31, 2013 were $1,000,000 (ncne in 2012).

—
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHCNE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 4 - Deferred Charges

Deferred charges, net of accumulated amortization, relate to the electric division and consist of the following at
December 31:

2013 2012

Deferred Charges
Overhaul unit no. 11 $
Overhaul unit no, 12
Overhaul unit no, 13
Overhaul unit no, 14
Overhaul unit no, 15
Air quality permits program
Cther

h-2)

h hlllll

Total Deferred Charges :3

R=cd

Included in deferred charges are cosis associated with the air quality permits program, major overhauls, studies,
and inspections. Such costs are originally deferred and subsequently capitalized to resultant construction or
amortized over five years if construction does not materialize.

Note 5 - Patronage Capital

Patronage capital consisted of the following at December 31:

2013
Electric Telephone Cable
Division Division Division Totals
Beginning balance s N - I Bl
Patronage capital retired - - I
Excise {ax refund = =
Assignable net margin _- -
Total Patronage Capital s_ I N c_ B
2012
Electric Telephone Cable
Division Division Division Totals

Beginning balance 3
Patronage capital retired
Excise tax refund

Assignable net margin IR

Total Patronage Capital $

s
(g
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 6 - Other Equities

Other equities consisted of the following at December 31:

Patronage estate discount
Patronage capital gain
Donated capital

Total Other Equities

Patronage estate discount
Patronage capital gain
Donated capital

Total Other Equities

2013
Electric Telephone
Division Division Totals
Bl s - § [
43555 § 20,292 § 63,847
2012
Electric Telephone
Division Division Totals

s - $ I
- = I
- HE B

40,443 § 19,670 % 60,113
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC,

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31:

2013 2012

Electric Division

£f

1l

Total Electric Division
Less Current Portion 209,000 218,000

1¥

Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities 1,513,021 1,721,987

Telephone Division

Total Telephone Division
Less Current Portion

Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities

Total Long-Term Debt
Less Current Portion

]
N
[
_ N
_ N
I
I
I

Total Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities

—
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Motes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt, continued

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Electric Telephane

Division Division Totals
2014 s N s B :c B
2015 | ] I |
2016 s ] ]
2017 [ I [
2018 I I [
Thereafter B s e |

s_HE s_ I s

Note 8 - Pension and Health and Welfare Plans

—_
an
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 8 - Pension and Health and Welfare Plans, continued

In the Plan, a "zone status” determination is not required and therefore, not determined under the Pension
Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations of plan assets are not determined
or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the NRECA RSP was 100 percent funded at January 1,
2012 based on the PPA funding target and PPA actuarial value of assets on that date. Information for the Plan
year beginning January 1, 2013 is not available at the time of this audit report.

Because the provisions of PPA do not apply to the NRECA RSP, funding improvement plans and surcharges are
not applicable and have not been applied. Future contribution requirements are determined each year as part of
the actuarial valuation of the NRECA RSP and may change as a result of NRECA RSP experience. There is no
collective bargaining agreement that affects future contribution requirements.

The Cocperative parlicipates in multi-employer plans through NRECA that provide all employees with health care
and other welfare benefits during the employees' working lives. Amounts charged to benefit cost and contributed
to the health and welfare plan for those benefits totaled $712,917 and $659,283, respectively, for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

In addition, the Cooperative also participates in a contributory, mulli-employer, defined contribution savings {401k)
plan (the Savings Plan) sponscred by NRECA. This program provides a tax deferral of current employee
earnings to a future period. All employees meeting the Savings Plan’s eligibility requirements are eligible fo
parlicipate if they have completed one month of service, and may contribute up to 25% of their salary. The
employer does not contribute to this plan. All participants are immediately vested in their confributions.
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.
Combining Divisional Balance Sheets - 2013

December 31, 2013

Electric Telephone Cable Eliminations Total
ASSETS
Current Assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
General $ {675,295} $ 3,287,646 $ 373,335 § - $ 2935686
Construction 218 2,088 - - 2,306
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts of $50,716 1,222 599 345,865 56,360 - 1624 824
Materials and supplies inventory 315,128 123,043 26,677 % 464,848
Fuel inventory 3,280,102 - - - 3,280,102
Prepaid expenses 6,856 27,710 28 B 34,594
Total Current Assets 4,149,608 3,786,352 456,400 - 8,392,360
Other Assets:
Investments in associated organizations 630,071 351,371 - - 081,442
Deferred charges 460,265 - - - 450,265
Total Other Assets 1,090,336 351,371 - - 1,441,707
Property, Plant and Equipment
In service 16,003,897 12,859,428 1,887,115 - 30,750,540
Under construction 758,560 631,468 22 638 - 1,412,666
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 16,762,557 13,490,896 1,909,753 - 32,163,206
Less accumulated depreciation 11,226,519 10,010,141 1,820,254 - 23,056,814
Property, Plant and Equipment, net 5,636,038 3,480,755 89,499 = 9,106,292
Total Assets $ 10,775982 § 7618478 § 545,898 $ - $ 18,940,359

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPEGTION
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.
Combining Divisional Balance Sheets - 2013
December 31, 2013

Electric Telephone Cable Eliminations Total
LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt =~ $ 209,000 § 70,000 § - - $ 279,000
Line of credit 2,892,791 = - = 2,892,791
Accounts payable 87,407 45,624 38,122 - 171,153
Consumer deposits 74,600 125,125 - . 198,725
Other accrued liabilities 466,871 135,780 . # 602,661
Total Current Liabilities 3,730,669 376,539 38,122 & 4,145,330
Long-Term Debt, net of current maturities 1,513,021 339,995 o " 1,853,016
Total Liabilities 5,243,690 716,534 38,122 - 5,898,346
Equities:
Patronage capital 5,488 737 5,681,652 507 777 - 12,878,166
Other equities 43 555 20,292 - - 63,847
Total Equities 5,632,292 6,901,944 507,777 - 12,942,013
Total Liabilities and Equities $ 10,775,982 § 7.618478 3 545,899 $ - § 18,040,359
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.
Combining Divisional Statements of Operations and Patronage Capital - 2013

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Operating Revenues:

Electric

Local network service

Network access services

Cable, net of retransmission fees
of $236,955

Internet

Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Power production
Distribution
Ptant specific
Plant non-specific
Depreciation
Customer
Administrative and general
Cable and internet
Operating taxes

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Margin (Loss)

Other Income {Expense).
Patronage allocations
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Non-regulated net income

Net Other Income (Expense)

Net Margin (Loss)

Beginning Patronage Capital
Patronage Capital Retired
Excise Tax Refund

Ending Patronage Capital

Electric Telephone Cable Eliminations Total
$ 8,286,695 § -3 - % - § 8286699
- 599,877 - - 599,877
- 2,733,178 - - 2,739,178
- - 218,166 - 218,166
- - 724,145 - 724,145
- 20,592 28,030 - 48,622
8,286,699 3,359,647 970,341 - 12,616,687
6,096,185 - - - 6,096,185
365,547 - - - 365,547
- 1,098,134 - - 1,008,134
- 363,283 - - 363,283
398,253 717,646 87,498 - 1,203,397
172,882 120,652 - - 293,534
1,279,536 984,503 - - 2,274,039
- . 855,168 - 859,168
8154 65,626 - - 74,780
8,321,557 3,359,844 946,666 - 12,628,067
(34,858) {197) 238675 - (11,380)
68,540 84,084 - - 152,624
4,719 8,459 - (8,272) 4,906
{169,773) (32,319) - 8,272 {193,820)
- 50,824 - - 50,824
{(96,514) 111,048 - - 14,534
(131,372) 110,851 23,675 - 3,154
5,629,356 6,787,675 484 102 - 12,901,133
(9.247) (17,799) - - (27.046)
- 925 - - 825
$ 5488,737% 6,881652% 507,777 % - $ 12878,166

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.
Combining Divisional Statements of Cash Flows - 2013

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Cash Flows from Operating Aclivities:
Net margin (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net margin {loss)

to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation
Noncash patronage allocations
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Materials and supplies inventory
Fuel inventory
Prepaid expenses
Deferred charges
Accounts payable
Consumer deposits
Other accrued liabilities

Net Cash Frovided (Used) by
Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of plant

Proceeds from grant reimbursements
Patronage dividends received

Net Cash Used by
Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net borrowings on lines of credit
Payments on long-term debt
Interdivision note receivable
Interdivision note payable
Capital credit payments, net
Refunds of federal communications

excise taxes

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalents, ending

Cash Paid During the Year for Interest,
net of amounts capitalized

Total

Cable Eliminations
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.
Schedule of State Financial Assistance

Year Ended December 31, 2013
Total State Expendiiures
Grant Grant Share of to
Numbey Award Expenditures Date

Alaska Energy Authority

* Lake Elva Hydropower Feasibility,

Community, and Economic
Development

Permitting & Finat Design 2195419 $ N $ B s
Dillingham Area Wind/Hydro

Assessment 2195480 & el |
Department of Commerce,

* Bulk Fuel Tank for Power Generation 13-DC-455

Tl

Total State Financial Assistance s T

* Denotes major program

Basis of Presentation
The accompanying Schedule of State Financial Assistance includes the grant activity of Nushagak Electric &

Telephone Cooperative, Inc. and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information is presented in
accordance with the requirements of the State of Alaska Audit guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single
Aurdits.
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REPORTS AND SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY STATE OF ALASKA
AuDiT GUIDE AND COMPLIANCE SUPPLEMENT FOR
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.
Dillingham, Alaska

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Nushagak Electric & Telephone
Cooperative, Inc. (the Cooperative), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and
the related statements of operations and patronage capilal, and cash flows for the years ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2014,

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audits, we considered the Cooperative's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing cur opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cooperative's internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Cooperative's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control cver financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal coentrol over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses, We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal controt over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal controf over financial reporting, as described below,
to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than
a material weakness, yel important enough to merit aitention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant
deficiencies: 2013-1 and 2013-2.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cooperative's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinicn on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matters which are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards, and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs as

item 2013-2.
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THE COOPERATIVE'S RESPONSE TO FINDINGS

The Cooperatives response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The Cooperative’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT '

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal contrel or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

AKT LLP

Salem, Oregon
March 24, 2014
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ALASKA AUDIT GUIDE AND COMPLIANCE SUPPLEMENT FOR STATE
SINGLE AUDITS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.
Dillingham, Alaska

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MaAJOR STATE PROGRAM

We have audited Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative’s {the Cocperative's) compliance reguirements
described in the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits that could have
a direct and material effect on the Cooperative's major state programs for the year ended Dacember 31, 2013.
The Cooperative's major state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s resulls section of the
accompanying schedule of Alaska financial assistance.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants

applicable to Alaska state programs.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on compliance for each of the Cooperative’s major state programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemniment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance
Suppiement for State Single Audits. Those standards and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance
Supplement for State Single Audits require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Cooperative’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion on coempliance for each major state
pregram. However cur audit does not provide a legal determination of the Cooperative's compliance.

OPINION OGN EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM

In our opinion, the Cooperative complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

OTHER MATTERS

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are reguired to be reported in
accordance with the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits and which
are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-1 and 2013-2. Our
opinion on each major state program is net modified with respect to these matters.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE _

Management of the Cooperative is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the reguirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the Cooperative's internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program to determine the auditing
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precedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major state program and to test and report on internal contrel over compliance in accordance with the State
of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audifs, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal control cver compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
contrel over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist
that have not been identified.

A deficiency in intemal controf over compliance exists when the design or operation of a contral cver compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliarice is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, In internal control over compliance, such that there Is a reascnable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-1, and 2013-2 to be significant deficiencies.

The Cooperative's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are described in
the accompanying corrective action plan. The Ccoperative’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internai control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State of Afaska
Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audils. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpase.

REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ALASKA AUDIT GUIDE AND
COMPLIANCE SUPPLEMENT FOR STATE SINGLE AUDITS

We have audited the financtal statements of the Cooperative as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013,
and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2014, which contained an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinicn on the financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying scheduled of state financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits and
is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additicnal procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or the financial statements
themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of state financial assistances is fairly stated in ail material
respects in relation lo the financial statements as a whole.

AKTLLP

Salem, Qregon
March 24, 2014
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NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Section 1 - Summary of Auditors' Resuits

Financial Statements
Type of auditers’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? X yes ____ no
Noncompliance matetial to financial
statements noted? yes X  no

State Financial Assistance

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance
for major programs: Ungqualified
Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _ no

Significant deficiencies identified not

considered to be material weaknesses? X  yes no
Dallar threshold used to distinguish a state major program $75,000

Section 2 - Financial Findings
Finding 20131 Financial Reporting

Criteria Under current auditing standards, the financial statement auditer cannot be considered part
of the Cooperative’s internal control process, which includes drafting of financial statements
and supporting notes in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Condition Our expertise is required to draft the financial statements and supporting notes in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Questioned Costs  None noted.

Context While the accounting staff performs daily bockkeeping duties and prepares accurate monthly
financial reports for management purposes, they have requested that we draft the financial
statement and supporting notes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Effect This is considered a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting.

Cause The Cooperative has determined that it is cost prohibitive to employ an individual with the
experlise necessary to prepare the financial statements and supporting notes in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Recommendation  Management should remain aware of the situation and evaluate it periodically.

Section 3 - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 20131 The significant deficiency in internal control noted above applies to all state award programs.
There are no questioned costs associated with this finding.

Finding 2013-2 Deadiine for Submission of State Single Audit - All Major Programs

REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 26



NUSHAGAK ELECTRIC AND TELEPHONE COOPERATIVE, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Criteria 2 AAC 45.010(b) states an entity that expends a cumulative total of $500,000 or more shall
submit an audit report for the audit period by the earlier of 30 days after the entity receives
its audit report for the audit period or nine manths after the end of the audit period, or a later
date agreed upon in writing and advance of the date in this section.

Condition The Cooperative did not submit their audit within 30 days of the issuance of their December
31, 2012 audit report.

Question Costs None noted.

Context Due to turnover of key staff, the Cooperative was unfamiliar with the single audit submissicn
process.

Effect The Cooperative is not in compliance with 2 AAC 45.010 (b)(1).

Cause Due to the turnover of the primary contact with AEA, the filing process was not completed

within the 30 day requirement.

Recommendation  The Cooperative should implement a system to ensure annual reporting is achieved timely.

Corrective Action Plan

Financial Stafement Findings

Finding: 2013-1 Financial Reporting
Name of Contact Person: Mike Megli, CEO
Corrective Action; Management has evaluated the situation and has determined that it is cost

prohibitive to internally maintain the level of expertise to draft the financial
statements and supporting notes, and as such will continue to outsource these
matters to externaf parties.

State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 2013-1 Financial Reporting

Name of Contact Person: Mike Megli, CEO

Corractive Action: See above.

Finding: 2013-2 Deadline for Submission of State Single Audit

Name of Centact Person: Michael Favors, Telecom Operations Manager

Corrective Action: The Cooperative has worked closely with the AEA to ensure reporting is

completed and submitted timely.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Finding 2012-1 Financial Reporting
This finding is still unresolved. It is repeated as finding 2013-1 for the year ended December 31, 2013,

Finding 2012-2 Quarterly Progress and Financial Reports

This finding has been resclved. Progress reports are submitted when due, even if there is no financial activity
during the reporting period.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH ASPECTS OF
CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR
TELECOMMUNICATION BORROWERS

To the Board of Directors
Nushagak Electric and Telephone Cooperative, Inc.
Dillingham, Afaska

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemnment Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Nushagak Electric Telephone Cooperative,
Inc., {the Cooperative), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2013, and the related statements
of operations and patronage capital, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our thereon report dated March 24, 2014, |n accordance with Government Auditing
Standards we have also issued our report dated March 24, 2014, on our consideraticn of the Cooperative’'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. No reports other than the reports referred to
above have been furnished to management.

In connection with cur audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the Cooperative failed to
comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of their loan, grant, and security instruments as set
forth in 7 CFR Part 1773, Policy on Audits of Rural Utilities Service Borrowers, §1773.33 and clarified in the RUS
policy memorandum dated March 24, 2014, insofar as they relate to accounting matters as enumerated below,
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of noncompliance. Accordingly, had we
performed additicnal procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the Cooperative's
noncompliance with the above-referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the contractual
agreements and regulatory requirements, insofar as they relate to accounting matiers. In connection with our
audit, except as noted below, we noted no matters regarding the Cooperative's accounting and records to indicate
that the Cooperative did not:

= Maintain adequate and effective accounting procedures;

s Utilize adequate and fair methods for accumulating and recording labor, material, and overhead costs,
and the distribution of these costs to construction, retirement, and maintenance or other expense
accounts;

+ Reconcile continuing property records to the controlling general ledger plant accounts. The Cooperative's
subsidiary plant records for central office and cable and wire have not been updated to agree with the
general ledger. The Cooperative is in the process of updating these records to ensure the balances
agree to the general ledger going forward;

= Clear construction accounts and accrue depreciation on completed construction;

s« Record and properly price the retirement of plant;

« Seek approval of the sale, lease or transfer of capital assets and disposition of proceeds for the sale or
lease of plant, material, or scrap;

» Maintain adequate control aver materials and supplies;

» Prepare accurate and timely Financial and Operating Reports;
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= Obtain written RUS approval to enter into any contract for the management, operation, or maintenance of
the borrower's system if the contract covers all or substantially all of the telecommunication or electric
system;

s Disclose material related party transactions in the financial statements, in accordance with requirements
for related parties in generally accepted accounting principles;

« Record depreciation in accordance with RUS requirements (See RUS Bulletin 183-1, Depreciaticn Rates
and Procedures),

« Comply with the requirements for the detailed schedule of deferred debits; and

» Our audit was made for the purpose of ferming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The detailed schedule of investments required by 7CFR 1773.33(j) is omitted as the Cooperative
does not have investments in affiliated or subsidiary companies.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole and
the detailed schedule of deferred debits and deferred credits required by 7 CFR 1773.33(h), provided below, is
presented for purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated In all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Deferred debits at December 31, 2013 relate to the electric division and consist of the following:

Overhaul of generator no. 11 $ 49,008
Overhaul of generator no. 12 26,683
Overhaul of generator no. 13 92,502
Overhaul of generator no. 14 47,303
Overhaul of generator no. 15 61,356
Air quality permits program 108,355
Other 74,968

Total deferred charges $ _460,265

The Cooperative had no deferred credits at December 31, 2013.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, and the Rural

Utilities Service and supplemental lenders, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited.

AKTLLP

Salem, Oregon
March 24, 2014
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